
 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2017 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

 Evans Phelps, Mayor 

Reinette Senum, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Vice Mayor 

David Parker, Council Member   Valerie Moberg, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 

each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on local 

public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in advance 

of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  Agenda 

notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 

distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, 

CA during normal business hours. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 

AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 

questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 

to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an opportunity 

to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF YOU 

CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered 

to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   

 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

 

Roll Call:  Moberg, Parker, Senum, Vice Mayor Strawser, & Mayor Phelps 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

PROCLAMATION:   
 

PRESENTATIONS:  Miners Foundry Cultural Center Update, Gretchen Bond, Executive 

Director 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 

 
 

1



 

 

the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 

jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  

Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 

certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 

action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 

2. REORGANIZATION OF CITY COUNCIL  

 

A.  Confirmation of Mayor Pro Tem Selection to be Mayor  

B. Nominations and Selection of Vice Mayor 
 

3. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

4. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 

Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 

for separate discussion and action. 

 

A. Subject: Award of Contract for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court at 

Pioneer Park in Nevada City 

Recommendation: Pass a Motion awarding a contract to MPI, Inc. in the amount of 

$9,175 plus $1,000 contingencies for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court 

in Pioneer Park and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 

B. Subject: Award of Contract for Upper Park Avenue Water Improvements in Nevada 

City 

Recommendation: Pass a Motion awarding a contract to Heart P Four, Inc. in the 

amount of $138,800 plus $20,000 contingencies for Upper Park Avenue Water 

Improvements in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 

C. Subject: Indigenous Peoples Day Street Closure Request – October 6, 2017 
Recommendation: Review and authorize Indigenous Peoples Day street closure 

request per application. 

 

D. Subject: Consideration of Professional Services Agreement with RSG, Inc. for 

Technical Support Related to Review of City of Nevada City Sphere of Influence by 

the Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission 

Recommendation: Pass a Motion awarding a Professional Services Agreement to 

RSG, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $5,500 to provide subject matter expertise, 

technical support and assistance with review of its existing Sphere of Influence by the 

Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). 

 

5. APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 

A. City Council Meeting – July 12, 2017 

 

2



 

 

6. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

A. Subject: Nevada City Broadband Task Force 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Subject: Informational Report on PG&E’s LED Streetlight Upgrade Project 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

B. Subject: Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternates(s) for the 2017 League of 

California Cities Annual Conference September 13-15, 2017 in Sacramento, 

California 
Recommendation: Pass a Motion designating a voting delegate and alternate(s) for 

the League of California Cities Business Meeting to be held on Friday, September 15, 

2017 in Sacramento, California. 

 

10. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

11. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Certification of Posting of Agenda 

I, Mark Prestwich, City Manager for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the July 26, 2017 

Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted July 21, 2017 at the entrance of City Hall. The agenda 

is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 

Signed July 21, 2017 at Nevada City, California 

 

 

_________________________________, Mark Prestwich, City Manager 

 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

 

 

August 9, 2017  Regular Council Meeting 

August 23, 2017  Regular Council Meeting 

September 13, 2017  Regular Council Meeting 

September 27, 2017 Regular Council Meeting 

 

3

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

 

 

NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 

remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 

while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

4



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 26, 2017       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor to Service for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct the selection process for Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
(Vice Mayor) in accordance with the Mayoral Succession adopted as amended pursuant 
to Resolution 2012-27. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 

The Mayoral Succession Policy for Nevada City was clarified and modified by 
Resolution 2012-27 (copy attached) providing for selection for the positions of Mayor 
and Mayor Pro Tem (Vice Mayor) on a rotating basis. 
 
Pursuant to the adopted Policy, current Vice Mayor Duane Strawser automatically 
succeeds Evans Phelps as Mayor unless he declines. The Policy further provides that 
the Mayor Pro Tem (Vice Mayor) shall be the next senior member who has served for at 
least 11 months and not previously served as Mayor. Council Members David Parker 
and Valerie Moberg both meet this criteria and are eligible for selection as Vice Mayor 
unless they decline.  
 
Should a member of the Council who is to assume either position not be present, the 
Council can postpone the action or make the designations contingent upon that 
member’s acceptance of the position. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 

 Resolution 2012-27 
 

5

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


6



7



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    
        City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City, CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

July 26, 2017  
 

 
TITLE:  Award of Contract for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court 
at Pioneer Park in Nevada City  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass a Motion awarding a contract to MPI, Inc. in the 
amount of $9,175 plus $1,000 contingencies for Storm Damage Repairs to the 
Horseshoe Court in Pioneer Park and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The purpose of this project is to repair storm and 
flood related damage to the horseshoe court area at Pioneer Park associated with 
the January 2017 storm events.   Storm flows from January storm resulted in 
extensive flood damage to areas throughout the City.   The City issued a 
proclamation of disaster on January 25th.   The Governor declared this series of 
storm events as a major disaster and the President of the United States issued a 
Disaster Assistance declaration FEMA-4301-DR-CA.  On March 24th the City filed 
a Request for Public Assistance (RPA) with CA State Governors Office of 
Emergency Services (Cal OES) with a list of projects.   This project was included 
as a portion of Pioneer Park Flood Repair - Item 1 on the list.  FEMA and Cal OES 
issued a damage description for this project in June 2017.  The work generally 
consists of repairs to the court and horseshoe pits including all labor and materials.     
 
City staff solicited bids for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court from 
local contractors in June, 2017.  One qualified bid was received as follows: 
 

 MPI, Inc., Nevada City CA    $9,175.13 

 
MPI, Inc. was selected as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project is funded by FEMA Federal cost share 
of 75% of eligible costs, State cost-share under the California Disaster Assistance 
Act (CDAA) of 75% of the non-federal share (this equates to 18.75%) and a local 
share of 6.25% by the City of Nevada City General Fund (estimated at $2,406.50 
with contingencies).    
 
ATTACHMENT: 

 Contract for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court in Pioneer Park 

8



 

 

Storm Damage Repairs to 
the Horseshoe Court in 

Pioneer Park  

 

City of Nevada City, 95959 
Nevada County, California 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

______________________________                          

Bryan K. McAlister        
PE C58570         
PLS 9199          

 

 

9



 

AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made this _______________ day of ______________________, between the CITY 
OF NEVADA CITY, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City," and MPI, Inc., hereinafter called 
"Contractor." 
 WHEREAS, City solicited bids pertaining to the STORM DAMAGE REPAIRS TO THE HORSESHOE 
COURT IN PIONEER PARK in said City: and 
 WHEREAS, after notice duly given, City has awarded the contract for such work to Contractor; 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between said parties as follows: 
 
 1. Scope of Work.  The contractor agrees to furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment, required to 
complete the sidewalk improvements in Nevada City, California, in accordance with the plans, specifications and 
other contract representation made in mandatory meetings.  All such work shall be performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner and to the satisfaction of the designer of said project. 
 
 2. Contract Price.  As consideration for all such work, City agrees to pay to Contractor at hourly rates as 
described in the MPI, Inc. estimate dated July 10, 2017 for an estimated total sum of Nine Thousand One Hundred 
and Seventy Five 13/100 ($9,175.13) Dollars, payable in the manner hereinafter set forth. 
 
 3. Contract Documents.  The complete contract between the parties hereto consists of the Agreement, Estimate 
and Insurance Documentation. All of the foregoing documents are intended to cooperate, so that any work or 
requirement specified in any of them is to be carried out or observed the same as if mentioned in all. 
 
 4. Time for Performance.  Within five (5) days after the execution of this Agreement, City shall give 
Contractor written Notice to Proceed, and thereafter Contractor shall commence the work and shall prosecute the 
same with due diligence until completion and acceptance by City; provided, however, that all such work shall be 
completed and ready for use within forty five (45) working days after Contractor receives said Notice to Proceed. 
 
 5. Extension of Time.  If, because of adverse weather conditions, strikes, inability of the Contractor (through 
no fault on his/her part) to obtain necessary materials, or other cause beyond the reasonable control of Contractor, 
Contractor is unable to complete the required work within the allowed time, he shall be entitled to an extension or 
extensions of such time, commensurate with the unavoidable delay thus caused; provided, however that Contractor 
shall apply to City for approval of any such extension prior to the expiration of the time for performance as specified 
in the preceding paragraph. 
 
  6. Contractor's Failure to Complete Work.  If Contractor fails to prosecute the work with such diligence as 
will insure its completion within the time hereinabove specified, or any extension thereof, or fails to complete such 
work within such time, or if Contractor shall otherwise violate this Agreement, City may give written notice to 
Contractor and his sureties of City's intention to terminate this Agreement unless, within five (5) days after services 
of such notice, satisfactory arrangements are made with the City for the completion of such work or the curing of 
such breach; and if such arrangements are not made within such time, City may, at its option, terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice of such termination to Contractor and his sureties. 
 
 7. Payments to Contractor.  On or before the tenth day of each month during the progress of the work, 
Contractor shall submit to the Designer an itemized statement of all labor and materials incorporated into the 
improvement during the preceding month and the portion of the contract price applicable thereto.   
 
 
 8. Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to hold City, and its officers, agents, and employees harmless from any 

10



and all liability and claims for damages for death and personal injury, and for property damage, incident to or arising 
out of the operations of Contractor or any subcontractor under this Agreement, and Contractor further agrees to 
defend City, and its officers, agents, and employees in any and all lawsuits which may be brought for such damages 
caused, or alleged to have been caused, by such operations.  In addition, Contractor agrees to furnish to the City 
evidences of insurance coverage.  The approval of such insurance by City shall not constitute a waiver or limitation 
of any rights under this indemnity agreement, regardless of whether such insurance shall be held to be inapplicable 
to any such damage or claims therefore. 
 
 
 Executed in duplicate this                     day of                         ,                . 
 
 
ATTEST: CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
    
 
 
                                         By:          
   (Mayor) 
 
   By:               
   (Contractor) 
 
 
   By:          
    (Authorized Officer) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



12



13



14



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    
        City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City, CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

July 26, 2017  
 

 
TITLE:  Award of Contract for Upper Park Avenue Water Improvements in 
Nevada City  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass a Motion awarding a contract to Heart P Four, Inc. in 
the amount of $138,800 plus $20,000 contingencies for Upper Park Avenue Water 
Improvements in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:   Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer and 
  Chris Schack, Public Works Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
The City Engineer and Public Works Superintendent identified water 
improvements that are necessary for continued service to residents on Upper 
Park Avenue.  This roadway is scheduled for drainage and pavement 
improvements which need to be completed prior to winter.  Due to construction 
schedules, staff is recommending that water improvements be expedited so that 
the subsequent work involving drainage and paving can be completed.  In 
addition to the work on Upper Park Avenue, public works staff also identified 
water repairs that are needed at various locations throughout the City.  The 
proposed water repairs are itemized in the bid documents and include water 
valve and hydrant replacement.  This project provides much needed replacement 
of century old water line facilities that are difficult to access and maintain. 
 
City staff solicited bids for Upper Park Avenue Water Improvements from four 
local contractors on July 18, 2017.  Two bids were procured, as follows: 
 

 Hansen Bros. Enterprises, Grass Valley CA $181,819.00 

 Heart P. Four, Inc., Nevada City CA  $138,800.00 

 
Heart P. Four, Inc.was selected as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project will be funded as authorized in the 
fiscal year 2017/2018 water and sewer fund appropriations.   . 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

 Contract for Upper Park Avenue Water Improvements 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



out of the operations of Contractor or any subcontractor under this Agreement, and Contractor further agrees to 
defend City, and its officers, agents, and employees in any and all lawsuits which may be brought for such damages 
caused, or alleged to have been caused, by such operations.  In addition, Contractor agrees to furnish to the City 
evidences of insurance coverage.  The approval of such insurance by City shall not constitute a waiver or limitation 
of any rights under this indemnity agreement, regardless of whether such insurance shall be held to be inapplicable 
to any such damage or claims therefore. 
 
 
 Executed in duplicate this                     day of                         ,                . 
 
 
ATTEST: CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
    
 
 
                                         By:          
   (Mayor) 
 
   By:               
   (Contractor) 
 
 
   By:          
    (Authorized Officer) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

23



Project Specifications  

 

PROJECT LIMITS 

Various Locations, as shown on the plans. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project consists of water service line installation and UPPER PARK AVENUE WATER IMPROVEMENTS as shown on the 

plans.   Methods of installation shall be selected by the contractor, however it is expected that there will be minimal or 

no disturbance of private home landscaping, fencing and hardscaping.     

 

TRAFFIC CONTOL 

When work is being performed, all streets shall have one lane of traffic available for alternating traffic.   At all times 

when work is not being performed, streets and driveways shall be safe for through traffic and pedestrians.   Lane closure 

shall comply with California Department of Transportation, "Manual of Traffic Controls for Construction and 

Maintenance Work Zones" current edition.   Notify Public Works Supt or City Engineer no fewer than two days in 

advance of proposed lane closure or driveway closure.   The contractor shall coordinate and verify with City staff that 

homeowners have been provided sufficient notice of any disruption of service including water, sewer or road access. 

 

CONSTRUCTION NOTES 

All improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the plans and details for the project and the latest edition of 

Caltrans Standard Plans and Standard Specifications and the Uniform Plumbing Code. 

 

MATERIAL NOTES 

WATER LINE PIPE AND FITTINGS 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for the project including tubing, and pipe, horizontal and vertical 

elbows, short pipe pieces, corporation stops, piping connections, couplings, jointing materials, warning tape, valve box and lid, 

excavation, bedding and backfill.     Water pipe 4” and larger shall be CL150 C900.    Water pipe smaller than 4” shall be PE 

polyethylene water supply line.   Flushing, disinfection testing and pressure testing shall be provided. 

Trench backfill shall consist of sand bedding around pipe per Standard Specifications and trench zone backfill from top of sand 

bedding to bottom of roadway pavement section with slurry cement backfill or compacted aggregate base. 

WATER SERVICES 

New saddles and taps will be Corporation Stops with a double brass saddle for a 6” water main.  Water service will be shut off 

and restarted by City personnel.  Each shut off beyond 10 hours will result in a charge of $70 per hour with a 4hour minimum. 

B‐16 Water Meter boxes shall be placed and centered on water meters.   

24



 

GENERAL NOTES 

Refer to City of Nevada City General Notes and Specifications. 

 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

July 26, 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Indigenous Peoples Day Street Closure Request – October 6, 2017 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize Indigenous Peoples Day street 
closure request per application. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The 20th Annual Indigenous Peoples Day 
event is a ceremonial celebration planned for October 6, 2017 in downtown 
Nevada City. Hosted by the Tsi Akim Maidu Tribe, this is an annual event 
entertains with an opening ceremony, Elder speakers, tribal dignitaries and 
community leaders. It has flutes, drums, Round Dance. 
 
The applicant for the Indigenous Peoples Day is proposing the closure of Union 
Street between Broad Street and Commercial Street. Event hours are planned 
for 6:00pm to 8:00pm.  
 
A summary of the specific event characteristics are included in the application 
packet.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 Street Closure/Special Event Application 
 

42

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 26, 2017       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Consideration of Professional Services Agreement with RSG, Inc. for 
Technical Support Related to Review of City of Nevada City Sphere of Influence by 
the Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass a Motion awarding a Professional Services Agreement to 
RSG, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $5,500 to provide subject matter expertise, 
technical support and assistance with review of its existing Sphere of Influence by the 
Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  The Nevada County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (Nevada LAFCo) is currently reviewing the City’s Sphere of Influence. At 
their March 16, 2017 meeting, LAFCo Commissioners requested the City develop an 
annexation plan for the orderly growth of the City and provided six months to complete 
this plan. City staff is currently developing this plan but is recommending the City 
supplement staff resources with an experienced consultant with subject matter expertise. 
City staff interviewed two firms and is recommending the City Council award a 
Professional Services Agreement to RSG, Inc. to provide additional technical support and 
assistance during the Sphere review process. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The $5,500 agreement will be funded by existing FY 2017-18 budget 
resources. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 

 Proposed RSG, Inc. Professional Services Agreement 
 

55

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 12, 2017 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date and 
Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at 
(530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 6:00 PM  
 

 
1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, a closed session is requested with negotiators City Manager 

Mark Prestwich, Assistant City Manager Catrina Olson, Consulting Assistant City Engineer William Falconi and 
Consulting City Attorney Hal DeGraw regarding possible sale of City-owned property at 775 Zion Street.  

 
2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) a closed session is requested with City Manager Mark 

Prestwich, Assistant City Manager Catrina Olson and Consulting City Attorney Hal DeGraw on a personnel matter 
related to the City Manager position. 

 
Action: Staff to proceed as directed. Assistant City Manager Olson will be appointed Interim City Manager effective July 
31, 2017 to replace City Manager Mark Prestwich, who is departing to become City Manager of St. Helena. 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Moberg, Senum, Parker, Vice Mayor Strawser 
  Absent:   Phelps 
   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
PROCLAMATION:  None 
 
PRESENTATION:  None 
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for comments.  
 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

A. Subject: Fire Activity Report – May 2017 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 
B. Subject: Award of Contract for Storm Damage Tree Removal at Deer Creek in Nevada City 

Recommendation: Pass a Motion awarding a contract to Tree Safe in the amount of $33,504 plus $5,000 
contingencies for Storm Damage Tree Removal at Deer Creek and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 
C. Subject: Determination of Public Convenience and Necessity for F.M.O Inc. DBA The Magic Theater / The Onyx 

Theater 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2017-48 authorizing the Chief of Police to make a Determination of Public 
Convenience and Necessity for F.M.O Inc. DBA The Magic Theater / The Onyx Theater located at 107 Argall Way 

69

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

in Nevada City. 
 
Action: Motion by Parker, seconded by Senum to approve Consent Items A, B, and C as presented. 
(Approved, 4 – 0; Phelps Absent) 
 

4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 
A. City Council Meeting – June 28, 2017 

 
Action: Motion by Parker, seconded by Moberg to approve June 28, 2017 Minutes as presented. 
(Approved 3 – 0; Phelps Absent, Senum Abstain) 
 
5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

 
A. Subject: Miners Trail Task Force Recommendations 

 
Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve approving short and long terms solutions to address fire risk, 
environmental health and public safety concerns along the Miners Trail. 
 
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps Absent)  

 
B. Subject: Monthly Update on City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives 

Receive and File. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Tentative Map for the Bungalows 6-Lot Multi-Family Subdivision at 601 Searls Avenue Together with a Site Plan, a 

Use Permit to Accommodate a Planned Unit Development, and Architectural Review 

 

Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to find the project is exempt from environmental review pursuant to 
§15332 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines for projects characterized as infill development. 
(Approved 3 - 1: NOES-Parker, Phelps Absen) 

 

Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve the site plan, subject to conditions of approval as may be 
modified at the public hearing, pursuant to Section 17.88.010 of the City Municipal Code. 
(Approved 3 - 1: NOES-Parker, Phelps Absent) 
 
Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve the Tentative Final Map subject to conditions of approval as 
may be modified at the public hearing, pursuant to Title 16.04 of the Nevada City Municipal Code and California Government 
Code Sec. 66474. 
(Approved 3 - 1: NOES-Parker, Phelps Absent) 
 
Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve the Use Permit allowing a Planned Unit Development to 
accommodate exceptions to lot size and property line setbacks subject to conditions of approval, or as may be modified at 
the public hearing. 
(Approved 3 - 1: NOES-Parker, Phelps Absent) 

 
Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve the Architectural Review application for the six townhouse 
units and ancillary improvements, subject to conditions of approval or as may be modified at the public hearing, pursuant 
to Section 17.88.040 of the City Municipal Code. 
(Approved 3 - 1: NOES-Parker, Phelps Absent) 
 
7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

A. Subject: An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City for the Pre-zoning of 54.32 acres (including 17.5 acres of public 

right-of-way area) within the Unincorporated Area of Nevada County, Northeast of the City Limits (Second Reading) 
 

70



3 

[Type here] 
 

 

Action: Motion by Moberg, seconded by Parker to waive reading of the Ordinance, read title only, and adopt Ordinance 

2017-11 for the Pre-zoning of 54.32 acres (including 17.5 acres of public right-of-way area) within the Unincorporated Area 

of Nevada County, Northeast of the City Limits (Second Reading) 
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps Absent) 
 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Replacement of Nevada City Historic District Waste and Recycling 
Action: Motion by Moberg, seconded by Parker to authorize the purchase of 20 replacement waste and recycling 
receptacles in the Nevada City Historic District in an amount not to exceed $26,000. 
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps Absent) 

 
9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 
10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS:  

 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT – 8:51 p.m. 
 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

71

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 26, 2017       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE: Nevada City Broadband Task Force 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:   At a recent City Council Meeting, Clientworks 
President & Bright Fiber Network (Spiral Internet) Chief Innovation Officer (CIO) Michael 
Anderson encouraged the City Council to consider the creation of a Broadband 
Committee to support the Gold Country Broadband Consortium’s (GCBC) mission of 
increasing digital access and use of broadband in the Sierra Nevada. The Council 
directed the City Manager to meet with Mr. Anderson, evaluate opportunities for the 
City, and consider a possible approach to such an effort.  
 
Subsequent conversations with Mr. Anderson and Kristin York, Vice President of 
Business Innovation at the Sierra Business Council (operating the GCBC), have 
provided additional background on the value such a committee’s work could contribute 
to the City. The purpose of the report is to communicate that the City Manager has 
designated the City Engineer and Mr. Anderson to serve as committee co-chairs for 
such an effort and to seek at a minimum additional participation from five others, 
including technology industry representatives and the community. The following 
preliminary work plan has been developed to guide the task force’s work: 

 Develop recommended broadband goals and strategies for the City of Nevada City 
consideration; 

 Evaluate opportunities to facilitate the deployment of broadband infrastructure 
locally; 

 Identify communications and economic development strategies that compliment 
regional efforts to grow broadband awareness and related investments in Nevada 
City; 

 Develop recommendations for the City Council on next steps for implementation 
(e.g. solicit proposals, additional analysis needed, etc.); and 

 Identify strategies to improve digital literacy, develop a technically fluent workforce, 
and improve access to affordable, robust broadband connections. 

It is anticipated the Committee’s work will span three to six months. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  None 

72

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 26, 2017       www.nevadacityca.gov 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TITLE:  Informational Report on PG&E’s LED Streetlight Upgrade Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 

CONTACT:  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 

 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  PG&E recently began street light upgrades in 
accordance with the CA Public Utility Commission approved program to replace high 
pressure sodium fixtures with high efficiency LED fixtures.  This does not include street 
lights in the Historic District that are City maintained.  Attached is a document that 
describes the program.  
 
PGE has a process for public outreach and been responsive to City inquiries.  The 
contacts are included in the attached document. City residents can request better 
shielding, less wattage fixture and/or new lights to be added where lighting is 
inadequate.   There is a cost associated with requested changes.   The cost to change 
an existing fixture by adding shielding or changing wattage is $200 each.  The cost to 
add new lights on existing poles is determined at time of application (typical costs are 
$2,000-$3,000).   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The program is funded by PG&E. The LED fixtures 
are expected to provide savings on electric costs to the City of approximately 30%.   
Residents requesting a change an existing fixture by adding shielding or changing 
wattage are required by PG&E to pay $200 for the change. 
 
Any new street lights, if required, are funded by the City as a part of a street 
improvement project.   No additional street lights are proposed at this time.  
 
ATTACHMENT:    

  

 PG&E Streetlight Upgrade Program Overview 

 

 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



“PG&E” refers to Pacific Gas and Electric Company, a subsidiary of PG&E Corporation. ©2016 Pacific Gas and Electric Company. All rights reserved.  July 2016   CCC-0716-6529

As part of our commitment to provide customers with safe, reliable, affordable and clean energy, Pacific 
Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) is upgrading its non-decorative, high pressure sodium vapor (HPSV) 
streetlights with more energy-efficient, light-emitting diode (LED) fixtures.

PG&E owns, operates and maintains approximately 160,000 non-decorative HPSV streetlights. PG&E is 
converting these streetlights in collaboration with cities, counties and non-municipal organizations that 
opt in to our voluntary program. We work closely with local communities to determine when and where 
to install LED streetlights, and we notify all customers of replacement activity in their neighborhood at 
least one week prior to our arrival.

LED Streetlight Upgrade Program

Recent Recommendations from the American 
Medical Association
The American Medical Association (AMA) released a policy statement 
asserting that LED streetlights are an important environmental 
innovation that can lower reliance on fossil-based fuels and 
encourage cost savings and efficiency. The AMA’s statement included 
guidelines and recommendations regarding the types of LED lighting 
best-suited to replace traditional streetlights.

The AMA encourages use of LED streetlights with the lowest possible 
emission and intensity of blue light to cut glare and light levels. The 
AMA also advises shielding streetlights to reduce glare, and suggests 
that communities consider streetlights that could be dimmed at night.

PG&E’s streetlights use lighting science and shielding to direct light 
toward the ground and minimize light pollution. Our streetlights 
feature current industry best practices to control excess light. That 
means our LED streetlights create a better-quality light with lower 
light output. Our lights also come with dimming capabilities for future 
consideration as technology evolves.

The AMA’s report specifically recommends that projects avoid “poorly 
designed” LED streetlights. PG&E buys its lights from leading 
manufacturers, such as Cree.

For those reasons, PG&E is confident in the safety and deployment 
of our LED fixtures. Still, we constantly look for ways to improve our 
technologies. PG&E has already reduced the correlated color 
temperature (CCT) of our fixtures from 6000 Kelvin (6000K) to 4000K. 
We have started test installations of 3000K fixtures, and we will 
continue to evaluate other improvements that are well-tested, clean, 
safe and reliable.

We also continue to follow the conversation taking place among 
academics, professional/industrial organizations and government. 
Several online resources are hyperlinked here for a more 
comprehensive view of that discussion.

PG&E continuously monitors new technology with a goal of bringing 
the most appropriate solutions to our customers. You can reach the 
Streetlight Upgrade Program directly at 1-877-743-2677 or 
streetlightupgrade@pge.com.

FOR MORE INFORMATION:

“Some media coverage of concerns about 
blue light, light at night, and dark-sky 
issues can give the impression that LEDs 
are the enemy, when in fact they're a critical 
part of the solution.”
The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE): 
“Get the Facts: LED Street Lighting”

“In general then, it is erroneous and 
misleading to use a metric developed for 
one purpose and then apply it to another 
purpose, particularly with regard to the 
impact of light on human health.”
Lighting Research Center at Rensselaer 
Polytechnic Institute

“Of primary concern to the IES is the 
potential for this report and its ensuing 
press to misinform the public with 
incomplete or inaccurate claims and 
improper interpretations.”
Illuminating Engineering Society (IES)

“NEMA also questions the wisdom of 
assigning significant weight to this 
recommendation since outdoor lighting 
design requires a complex analysis of many 
criteria. Outdoor lighting systems will vary 
depending on the application and local 
conditions. Tradeoffs in the considerations 
of visibility, environmental impacts, energy 
efficiency, cost, personal safety and 
security need to be optimized, which cannot 
be achieved with a single solution.” 
National Electrical Manufacturers 
Association (NEMA)

83

http://www.energy.gov/eere/ssl/articles/get-facts-led-street-lighting
http://www.lrc.rpi.edu/resources/newsroom/AMA.pdf
http://ies.org/emails/2016/june/ama-response.html
http://www.edisonreport.net/lighting-industry-news/nema-responds-ama-single-solution-simply-not-appropriate-all-situations/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 26, 2017       www.nevadacityca.gov 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:   Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternates(s) for the 2017 League 
of California Cities Annual Conference September 13-15, 2017 in 
Sacramento, California  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass a Motion designating a voting delegate and alternate(s) for 
the League of California Cities Business Meeting to be held on Friday, September 15, 
2017 in Sacramento, California. 
  
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 

BACKGROUND: The League of California Cities will hold its annual Business Meeting 
on Friday, September 15, 2017 in conjunction with its Annual Conference in Sacramento. 
At this meeting, the League membership considers and takes action on resolutions that 
establish League policy. 
 
In order to vote at the Business Meeting, the City Council must designate a voting 
delegate. The Council may also appoint up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom 
may vote in the event the designated voting delegate is unable to do so. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 May 3, 2017 League of California Cities Memo 
 Voting Delegate/Alternate Form 

 

84



85



86



1

2

J

4

6.

1

5.

Annual Conference Voting Procedures

One City One Vote. Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to
League policy.

Designating a City Voting Representative. Prior to the Annual Conference, each city
council may designa.te a voting delegate and up to two alternates; these individuals are
identified on the Votting Delegate Form provided to the League Credentials Committee.

Registering with the Credentials Committee. The voting delegate, or altemates, may
pick up the city's voting card at the Voting Delegate Desk in the conference registration
area. Voting delegates and altemates must sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk. Here they
will receive a special sticker on their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at
the Business Meeting.

Signing Initiated ResolutÍon Petitions. Only those individuals who are voting delegates
(or alternates), and who have picked up their city's voting card by providing a signature to
the Credentials Committee at the Voting Delegate Desk, may sign petitions to initiate a

resolution.

Voting. To cast the city's vote, a city official must have in his or her possession the city's
voting card and be n:gistered with the Credentials Committee. The voting card may be
transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but may not be transferred to
another city official who is neither a voting delegate or altemate.

Voting Area at Business Meeting. At the Business Meeting, individuals with a voting card
will sit in a designated area. Adrnission will be limited to those individuals with a special
sticker on their name badge identi$ring them as a voting delegate or altemate.

Resolving Disputes. In case of dispute, the Credentials Committee will determine the
validity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of a city official to vote at the
Business Meeting.

87



   
   

 
 

 
2017 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

VOTING DELEGATE/ALTERNATE FORM 
 

Please complete this form and return it to the League office by Friday, September 1, 2017.  
Forms not sent by this deadline may be submitted to the Voting Delegate Desk located in 
the Annual Conference Registration Area.  Your city council may designate one voting 
delegate and up to two alternates. 
 

In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting (General Assembly), voting delegates and alternates must 
be designated by your city council.  Please attach the council resolution as proof of designation.  As an 
alternative, the Mayor or City Clerk may sign this form, affirming that the designation reflects the action 
taken by the council. 
 

Please note:  Voting delegates and alternates will be seated in a separate area at the Annual Business 
Meeting.  Admission to this designated area will be limited to individuals (voting delegates and 
alternates) who are identified with a special sticker on their conference badge. This sticker can be 
obtained only at the Voting Delegate Desk. 
 

 

1. VOTING DELEGATE     
 
Name:         
 

Title:          
 
2. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE  3. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE 
 
Name:        Name:        
 

Title:        Title:         
     
PLEASE ATTACH COUNCIL RESOLUTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATE 
AND ALTERNATES. 
 

OR 
 

ATTEST:  I affirm that the information provided reflects action by the city council to 
designate the voting delegate and alternate(s).          
 
Name:         E-mail        
 

Mayor or City Clerk        Phone:       
(circle one)                            (signature) 

Date:         
 
Please complete and return by Friday, September 1, 2017 
 

  League of California Cities    FAX:  (916) 658-8240 
ATTN:  Carly Shelby    E-mail: cshelby@cacities.org  
1400 K Street, 4th Floor    (916) 658-8279 
Sacramento, CA  95814         

 

CITY:________________________________________ 

  88


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 07.26.2017.pdf
	2A-1 Stf Rpt-Mayor-Vice Mayor Selection
	2A-2 Reso 2012-17 - Mayoral Succession Policy
	4A-1 SR - Award Contract for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court in Pioneer Park
	4A-2 Contract for Storm Damage Repairs to the Horseshoe Court
	4B-1 SR - Award Contract for Upper Park Avenue Water Improvements
	4B-2 Contract for Upper Park Water Improvements
	4C-1 Stf Rpt Special Event - Indigenious Peoples Day
	4C-2 Indigenius Peoples Day Application
	4D-1 Stf Report - RSG Agreement
	4D-2 RSG Professional Services Agreement
	5A-1 Minutes - July 12, 2017.Draft
	6A-1 Broadband Task Force
	9A-1 SR - PG&E Streetlight Upgrade Overview
	9A-2 PGE Streetlight Upgrade Nevada City
	9B-1 SR League Voting Delegate
	9B-2 League Memo
	9B-3 Voting Procedures
	9B-4 Voting-Delegate-Form



